SPECIAL MEETING

JULY 17, 2006

The Special Meeting of the Council of the County of Kaua‘i was called to
order by the Council Vice Chair at the Council Chambers, Historic County
Building, 4396 Rice Street, Room 201, Lihu‘e, Kaua‘i, on Monday, July 17, 2006 at
9:07 a.m., after which the following members answered the call of the roll:

Honorable Jay Furfaro

Honorable Daryl W. Kaneshiro

Honorable Mel Rapozo

Honorable JoAnn A. Yukimura

Honorable James Kunane Tokioka, Vice Chair
Honorable Bill “Kaipo” Asing, Council Chair

Excused: Hohorable Shaylene Iseri-Carvalho

Chair Asihg: Please note that Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho had a
former commitment and could not make it today, but she sends her best to all of
you. With that can we have the first (1st) item please?

COMMUNICATION:

C 2006-249 Communication (07/11/2006) from James Kunane Tokioka,
Council Vice Chair, transmitting a resolution for Council consideration, urging that
Hawai‘i Pacific Health reopen negotiations with the Hawai‘i Nurses Association and
further requesting that Governor, Linda Lingle assist in resolving the labor dispute
at Wilcox Memorial Hospital: Mr. Rapozo moved to receive C 2006-249 for the
record, seconded by Mr. Tokioka and unanimously carried.

Chair ‘Asing: Motion carried, next item please.

RESOLUTION:

. PR

Resolution No. 2006-25, RESOLUTION, .URGING .. HAWAIT PACIFIC
HEALTH TO REOPEN SUBSTANTIVE NEGOTIATIONS FOR A FAIR AND
EQUITABLE SETTLEMENT WITH THE HAWAIT NURSES ASSOCIATION AND
FURTHER REQUESTING THAT GOVERNOR LINDA LINGLE ASSIST IN
RESOLVING THE LABOR DISPUTE AT WILCOX MEMORIAL HOSPITAL:

Chair Asing: " Thank you, with that what I’d like to do is turn it over to
Councilmember Tokioka, since you are the introducer of the resolution.
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Mr. Tokioka: Thank you very much Mr. Chairman. First of all, good '

morning everyone and thank you for being here. The issue that’s in front of us, is a
very, very, important issue on, on either side of the issue that you stand on. And as

a Council, we are approached many, many times in the community about how we
can assist. And in talking to the Councilmembers and passing around this

resolution, we feel it’s very, very important to try to assist in whichever way we can.

And this gives the community a forum to hear and to understand the issue, to
decide how people feel about the issue, to give you the nurses at Wilcox, the

Administration, I see some people from the Board and some people from the

Administration here, an opportunity to voice your concerns and your opinions:

regarding the labor dispute at Wilcox. So normally the Council meetings are on

Wednesday, but because every day that this strike goes on, it’s a day of work that
the nurses are not working, so this is why we have this Special Council Meeting.

The Chairman and myself had the discussion about when we were going to put it on
the agenda, and that’s why we scheduled a special meeting today, just for this issue.

Because we know how important every day that people are not working is to
everyone in the community, so we scheduled this meeting and what I’d like to do

now is to call up the community, I, I... Mr. Clerk, do you have the list of speakers?

Chair Asing: Suspend the rules.

Mr. Tokioka: Yeah. We’re going to suspend the rules, and the first

speaker we have on the agenda is D.Q. Jackson. Mr. Jackson? Yeah, and I tolc%}
them before, and just again for everyone’s information, you have three (3) minutes
to present your testimony. After the three (3) minutes are up, well let people
summarize if it’s close, if not, when everyone else in finished testifying you can
come back again for a second three (3) minutes, okay. Mr. Jackson? '

There being no obJectlons, the rules'were suspended. - - /
. . i

D.Q. JACKSON: Aloha, aloha and good morning County Councilmembers;
I'm D.Q. Jackson, all of you know me. Indeed some of you have known me for
decades. You know me as a community service advocate, but today I'm here as a
member of the nurses negotiating team. The last time I sat in this chair, you were
honoring me as a State of Hawai‘i Emergency Nurse of the Year, and that was a
happy day, but today is not a happy day. This is the 24t day of the nurses strike.
Kaua’s nurses’ are sacrificing ‘and suffering for their patients. They’ré performing
their basic function, the very core of their being, that’s advocating for their patients.
Above all else, they want their patients to be safe and that can’t happen when the
nurses are overwhelmed by unsafe staffing. It’s become a question of how many
patients can be carried on the shoulders of one (1) nurse before somebody gets hurt,
and they’re afraid, they’re afraid that that person getting hurt may even turn out to
be ‘a neighbor, a friend, or a family member. Their strike is about finding a means
to classify patients according to their illness or -injury. A means that can’t be
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manipulated by management. A means that is ‘transparent to the nurses, to
management, and to people such as yourselves.

Three (3) years ago, management agreed to do that, they put it in writing,
but it never happened. In fact, for two (2) years, they wouldn’t even talk to us. Now
they say trust us, this time we’ll do it. Well trust is a big problem for the nurses. If
they could trust management, 89% of them would not have voted to strike. But the
nurses’ strike is a symptom of an even larger problem. Everyone in this room is
aware of the unsettling and distressing changes that have occurred in Kaua‘i’s
health care system. The experiment that allowed an urban corporation to assume
responsibility for the health care of a small rural island seems not to be working
well.

In 2001, the State of Hawai‘l issued a permit called Certificate of Need
Number 01-07, which allowed Wilcox Hospital to be absorbed by Hawai‘i Pacific
Health. In order for that permit to be issued, certain promises were made to the
State and to our Kaua‘i community. Are those promises being kept? It’s time for
Kaua‘i’s people to have the opportunity to speak about the status about that
Certificate of Need. It’s time for open public meeting so that the people may express
their concerns and their suggestions for improvement. It’s time for an assessment
of where we are, and where we’re going, and then it’ll be time for ho‘oponopono. As
a concerned Kaua‘i resident, I believe that you can help the nurses and the people of
Kaua‘i by issuing a resolution requesting the Hawai‘i State Health Planning and
Development Agency, that’s known as SHPDA from its initials, to hold an open
public hearing on Certificate of Need Number 01-07, allowing the public, as how we
do it, allowing them to speak how we do it on Kaua‘il. It’s the way we talk out our
problems and find resolution. We need to talk it out, and then we need to put those
problems behind us. Thank you. Do you have any questions for me?

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Mr. Jackson,' any questions for D.Q.?

Councilmember Furfaro. ' N
e Yo7 44 . .

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, D.Q. thank you for the presentation. For many of us,
we're not in the medical field, but we’re hearing terminology that I'm going to ask
you to explain to us if you could. What do you reference when you talk in terms of
the staffing ratios for nurses, and do they change during day shift, night shift,
graveyard shift? What, what could you explain, explain that to us a little bit.

Mr. Jackson: Ratio is a word that our management doesn’t like to use.
It implies structure. When I use the word ratio it’s the number of patients that
each nurse takes care of in a shift. Right now on average, it’s about one (1) to five
(5) in the daytime, it changes in the evening when things get quieter. But things
can change during the day, patients can crash, patients can get better.
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Mr. Furfaro: Okay, so is it a bit higher in the evening shift, is that
what it means, it’s one five (1:5), does it go to one six (1:6), something like that...
Mr. Jackson: Yes, it can and it can go even much higher than that.
Mr. Furfaro: Okay. .May I continue Vice Chair‘}
Mr. Tokioka: Yes. | i
Mr. Furfaro: Yes, for the purpose of indexing perhaps longer term' care}-

or Medicare staffing, is there a different ratio? .Is there a different mix, with
Medicare cases?

Mr. Jackson: There should not be. - |
- 0

Mr. Furfaro: ‘ Should not be.
' nI
Mr. Jackson: All patlents should be treated the same, with equal care

and concern. . o : j
. i

Mr. Furfaro: = And since you brought up the term urban hospitals, could
I ask what are Kaua‘i’s ratios as it compares to Maui or Hilo, some of the Othe_l"‘
rural neighbor islands? . _ 3

Mr. Jackson: Well actually, I haven’t worked in those hospitals, I
cannot say. I can tell you that they’re quite different from Wilcox Hospital. We’ re
just a little tiny rural hospital here, with a relatively small number of beds. We
don’t have the specialty teams that you’ll find, specialty nursing teams that you’ll
find in say the Honolulu hospitals. That makes it very different when we'’re trymg
to negotiate with management, when they try to treat us like a big city hospital.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay and last question. I picked up in your flyer. The
patient staffing ratios are...could possibly be managed by a, it looks like a staffing
program at of a cost of about $50,000. Is, is that somethmg that’s in your current
request? For the hospital request... . : *

Mr. Jackson: - We made that request. We d1d .we made that request to
management, and it was rejected on the basis of cost. On the other hand, th
Honolulu hospitals that they run certainly have such (inaudible) systems. Don’t we
deserve at least the same? |

Mr. Furfaro: Okay. I have no more questions for D.Q. at this time. I
just want to remind everybody that you know, it’s good to have information out
there. 1 think the long-term success of our community certainly between
management and the staff. You know our future success depends on dealing with

]
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quahty issues with each other and in the long term ‘making sure we keep good
relationships through this process this morning. +Thank you.” -+ * °»

. -

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Councilmember Furfaro. Councilmember
Rapozo? ' ’
Mr. Rapozo: Yeah, I think you’ll be there for awhile. D.Q., thanks for

being here and I just had a question on one (1) on the comments that you made
regarding the Certificate of Need, and can you help us understand or me-anyway,
what that is exactly because I'm not familiar...

Mr. Jackson: In the simplest of terms, when the health system changes
for any reason on our island or anywhere in the State of Hawai‘i, the State of
Hawai‘i Health Planning and Development Agency has to approve that. It has to be
approved. It’s like when a permit is given for a building or something like that,
there has to be approval for it. And the process is open public hearings, as some
entity comes forward suggesting a change in health care services, and normally we
have an open public hearing, testimony is given, SHPDA listens to it, and then
makes a decision. It is very similar to the process you have here. The difference is,
we’re asking you to simply request SHPDA to do its normal job.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, you mentioned in the permit, there were some
conditions that may not be in compliance or may not I mean...

Mr. Jackson: There are...
Mr. Rapozo: Can you...
Mr. Jackson: Quite a few people behind me are looking forward to an

opportunity to answer that question exactly, so therefore, what I would suggest is
that, the very first one (1) comes to mind is the assurance that access to health care
would not be impacted. Is there anybody in this Council that has not seen the
impact on our physicians and our nurses? There are several other areas, also other
promises that were made.

Mr. Rapozo: " Yeah, and I haven’t seen the certificate. I, so for me, it’s I
don’t know and that’s why I... : -
Mr. Jackson: It’s my belief that the proper forum for that is of course a

meeting of SHPDA. That’s where these things are normally done. We're delighted
that the Council is willing to listen to this, and certainly willing to go into it, but the
appropriate and proper place is of course a meeting of the State Health Planmng
and Development Agency, that’s the normal process ‘

S : i
LEL S B3 L s L1
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. Mr. Rapozo: . I agree and I understand, but you brought it up, and [
don’t know what you're talking about, so I'm trying to figure out what you’re talking
about

Mr. Jackson: Alright,- well let’s give ‘you some good exameles. Okay

they said that a...
Mr. Rapozo: | And D. Q it doesn’t have to be today, I mean I _]ust kind a

wanted to get the overall definition of what the Certificate of Need was because...

Mr. Jackson: It’s the conditions and reoiuirements under which that
permit was issued. : :

&,

~ Mr. Rapozo: - Okay, and that’ll be enough for now, I'm sure v‘ige;ll hear a

lot more... - s , oy
oo : .o ' ’ ¥

Mr. Jackson: Oh yes you w1ll .

Mr. Rapozo:  From the nurses as Well as the Board, thank you. 1

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any other Councﬂmembers? Questions?
Councilmember Yukimura please?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, thank you, good morning. Thank you for being here
and for your concern. I guess my question first to the issue of the ratio, isn’t it all
jurisdictions that work by a ratio or are there other ways to address the issue of
patient load or...

Mr. Jackson: - Yes... - ¢

Ms. Yukimura: I mean when.... R ' A i

Mr. Jackson: There’s a wide range... "

Ms. Yukimura: I was walking in the line about four (4) weeks ago I guess,
or three (3) weeks ago, Tracy was telling me that in California they passed a law
requiring a one (1) to five (5) ratio. : . :

Mr. Jackson: . Yes.

- -

Ms. Yukimura: " And I don’t .and that...so that seems to be a standard. I
also learned that in Florida they passed and I'm going to have to verify this, but a
one (1) to five (5) ratio and then found that it didn’t always work, and so they
repealed it now. And then the other nurses were telling me that it’s sometimes an
issue of how much ancillary support there is, other specialties and teams that you
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know are there to or not there to support the nurses on the floor. So it seems to be a
rather complicated issue, but I just wonder if there’s only one (1) solution, or if there
may be a variety of solutions, if the parties can come together and work it out?
Because I know that the bottom line for the nurses is the condition and support for
the patient.

Mr. Jackson: You are absolutely correct, there are jurisdictions that
make it strict law what the ratio may be, there are other places that do other
things. We have, we have recognized that the word ratio is absolutely anathema to
this management team, so we don’t push ratio anymore. It would be a useless, we’ll
never agree on anything if we use that word ratio. What they did agree to, and
what we promote is the safe staffing system of the American Nurses Association,
they agreed to it. All it causes us to do is to work together with them, to come up
with the safe staffing mechanism for that particular shift for example. Our problem
is they manipulate it, that’s why we asked for a system that is transparent to the
nurses, to management, and to you for example. That you could walk right in there,
take a look at it, and say yep, that’s the number nurses we need.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay I was also told that and I dor’t know if this, I mean
we are...Council is really out of our element. You know, we don’t know much about
nursing or health care and I think the resolution was introduced because we really
care about our community at large and it’s access to health care. But we, we’re just
on a really fast learning curve so please excuse us, but, so I was told that sometimes
the patients are of different need. And I guess throughout healthcare it’s a matter
of prioritizing which one you attend to first, and so all five (5) patients are always
the same five (5) patients, I mean in terms of level of need?

Mr. Jackson: Correct.

Ms. Yukimura: And so sometimes you might have a set of five (5) that in
their totality have more need than another set of five (5). So which, so what I'm
hearing you say is that because there’s a lack of trust in a good working relationship
between management and the nurses, the other more amorphous or you know you
can’t reduce it to a ratio systems can’t work and therefore you want the ratio
system?

Mr. Jackson: That’s not correct...
Ms. Yukimura: Is that correct?
Mr. Jackson: We are not asking for a ratio system.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay thank you, please correct me.
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Mr. Jackson: No, were asking for a. classification system that is
transparent, easily understood by everybody that cannot be manipulated. We'’re not
asking for ratios. :

Ms. Yukimura: | Okay...
Mr. Jackson: . Let me repeat that, we are not asking for ratios.
Ms. Yukimura: Okay, and so When you say cannot be mampulated do you

say that it’s the nurses call to, to determine staffing and level of patient need, or
does management have a role in that too?

Mr. Jackson: ' ) Ii: should in fact be.50-50, unfortunateb; that’s not what’§
happening. : )
Ms. Yukimura: . I see. S A _ ;
L TR R T A :

Mr. Jackson: It is at times. It is not difficult to intimidate a nurse

when she’s stuck by herself, especially if it’s an overbearing male.

‘Ms. Yukimura: Okay.
Mr. Jackson: And everybody knows what I'm talking about.'
" Ms. Yukimura; Okay, I think I'm ﬁgurlng it out, alnght Okay, I th1nk

you've helped me understand this situation. Regarding the Certificate of Need, I
too am not exactly sure what the system is about, but my lay understanding is that

the State determines whether there’s a need for a,particular health care facility in

the community. And that the need for that kind of regulation is important because
you could have so many health care facilities performing the same kind of services
that they...none of them will be economically viable, and so the State has to
determine that. That there i is a need that is not bemg met and that it can be don‘e

in an economically viable... |

Mr. Jackson: Yes. \
Ms. Yukimura: ...way, is that correct?
Mr. Jackson: You are exactly correct. The reason why it is so importarit

in Hawai‘i is because of our very unique nature. We're a whole bunch a little
islands strung out, some of them are like us, very rural, others are enormous
metropolitan areas where they have the, the luxury of many different hospitals.
You have the ability to go there if you don’t like this one (1) and so forth, but on
Kaua‘i, we just don’t have that, and that’s why it’s so important that thé people
have an opportunity to express themselves on how things are going. I will tell you
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this, in conversations with SHPDA, we are aware that if you do what we ask you to
do and just merrily request them to do their normal process that they will receive
your request and they will act on it.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay because I think there is a widespread concern in the
community about the provision of healthcare by Wilcox and so the you know, but
there needs to be more people at the table than just the management and nurses,
and I think you are talking about such a forum.

Mr. Jackson: It would please us no end if there were a community
group to which we could provide information. It would in fact be absolutely
miraculous if one (1) of you people would be able to come forward to lead such a

group.

Ms. Yukimura: Well I don’t know if any of us are qualified to lead a group
but I mean the main... '

Mr. Jackson: You are one of the best facilitators we have on this island.

Ms. Yukimura: Well thank you, but I don’t know if that’s the point. The
point is, it’s a very complex issue, because when you have a rural society you have a
population base of like, I think we have between 65,000 and 80,000 let’s say, we're
growing so rapidly, I don’t know if we-can rely on existing census data, but you
know it’s very different from like I think O‘ahu has almost a million people now.
And that kind of base supports like you say a lot more specialties and a lot
more...they just have a lot more money and resources to draw on, and so our rural
hospital is really a challenge because you don’t have all that population and
financial base, but you have the need for the (inaudible) of services right?

Mr. Jackson: All the more important that everybody be involved and
have that opportunity... :

Ms. Yukimura: That’s right. Okay, okay, I think I understand what
you’re saying now, so thank you very much. :

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Councilmember Yukimura. Ceuncilmember
Kaneshiro? ' :

Mr. Kaneshiro: Thank you. Help me to understand the meaning of
SHPDA. Is that, who makes up that agency? I know it’s a State Health Planning
and Development Agency, but...

Mr. Jackson: State Health Planning and Development Agency...

Mr. Kaneshiro: Okay...
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Mr. Jackson: Its initials are SHPDA, so everyone calls it. SHPDA. .
Mr. Kaneshiro: It’s made up of who? S
Mr. Jackson: We have...each island has a subarea council, so for

instance, we have that also for Kaua‘i. Each island is addressed but of course it’s a
State office with its headquarters in Honolulu.

Mr. Kaneshiro: , So comes under the State of Hawai‘i?
Mr. Jackson: © Yes. - ' ;1

Mr. Kaneshiro: As a State office...

S

~ Mr.J ackseh: Yes.

Mr. Kaneshiro: - Okay, okay and I do have another question. The second
question is that your feeling is that the $50,000 (inaudible) that you’ve been talking
about, is something like that would help to resolve some of the ratio to, the nurses
ratio that youre saying that the nurses are looking at? Would that be a system?
I'm just trying to understand that because you know I don’t have any idea about
about ratio and so forth. All I know is, you know when I get hurt or somethmg I'm
taken care of well. You know I'm ﬁne, get in there and want to try to get out as fast
as I can, because it’s so busy but... ;. 5. o ‘ "

Mr. Jackson: Right... ,

- . L

Mr. Kaneshiro: I've always had good care, so I don’t know really what’s,
what we're talking about ratio and so forth, so pardon my ignorance but...

Mr. Jackson: Okay...
Mr. Kaneshiro: Just so I know...

Mr. Jackson: The fact is that I have with my hands on every person up
here, this Council, at one (1) time or another, yes. The issue, the issue of an acuity
system is a complex one (1).

Mr. Kaneshiro: .~ Okay. _ L | | i

Mr. Jackson: We are not, we’re not absolutely carved out of stone in
this, we’re willing to compromise. We've got to be able to talk with them and find a
mechanism by which we know they will adhere to it, that’s all we want. '
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Mr. Kaneshiro: And in your experience...

Mr. Jackson: It doesn’t have to cost a million dollars...
Mr. Kaneshiro: Yeah, and in your...

Mr. Jackson: And that’s why they, that’s what they said they could not
do, it was too expensive. Our problem is, the expense of this strike is astounding
compare to the relatively small sum if you buy a professional aculty system. ‘But we
can get by without that, we can make agreements if we can just talk together.

Mr. Kaneshiro: Okay, alright.

Mr. Tokioka: Councilmember  Furfaro~ had his hand up.
Councilmember Furfaro? ’

Mr. Furfaro: Yes thank you. D.Q., I just, I just in my...in my labor
experience over the years, I just want to ask a few questions so I could kind of
understand the process. And first of all, I'm very delighted that both sides are
talking today, that’s really important. I think you know that’s the heart of the
operation, is to be talking to each other. In the process that you're...nurses union
currently, what are the parameters for this negotiation? Are there any times when
the mediator is at the table at the same time with both parties? And this is kind of
on your follow-up when you were talking to Councilwoman Yukimura, or in your
structure of things, does management talk to the mediator? The mediator then is
the facilitator that comes back to talk to the other side and then when you've found
common ground on that one item, that’s when you come back to the table? I'm just
trying to understand and I'm :

Mr. Jackson: Without a big long history, we began with the mediator.
We were doing very, very well with the mediator, and sessions were necessary and
didn’t even bother to show up, her presence wasn’t needed. But as time went along,
after we resolved all other issues except three (3) that still bother  us very
significantly, we began to run into trouble. We needed the mediator back. It
became increasingly difficult and got to the point when the mediator then found
herself shuttling back and forth between different rooms. We're quite prepared to
meet them face to face today.

Mr. Furfaro: So you are prepared to be at the table with the mediator
today? : :

Mr. Jackson: We asked her to do'that, yes.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay, is this a Federal mediator, is that a State mediator?
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Mr. Jackson: Federal mediator, her name is Carol Catanzorini. She is
respected by both sides.
Mr. Furfaro: | May I continue?
Mr. Tokioka: Yes.

S e I P PR -1.-.3“ .

Mr. Furfaro:- ; Thank-you.,. wVery different from what I’m used to in
negotiations is the fact ‘that you talk about the, you talk about the non-cost 1tem
first, which might relate to, although we don’t want to use this term I understand, 1t
might relate to the ratios, and staffing, and so forth. You talk about those
particulars first, specialized duties and so forth, and after you reach agreement,
then you become, you start talking about the cost items like wage increase, the
benefit increases, and so forth. I'm trying to understand...this is kind of reversed,

you've already settled on the... L i

Mr. Jackson: Long ago...

“Mr. }Furfaro: Cost fact‘()rﬁ.
Mr. Jéckson: .Long ago. Y | - 1
Mr. Furfaro: You settled on th;a éosf factoré bjefore? ) : : .ll
Mr. Jackson: -+ Long ago. _‘, , | ) o '_ . ,
Mr. Furfaro: : Before negotlatmg tfxe partlcular staffing 1ssues‘7 I'm Just

trying to understand thls, it’s very different from what I'm used to.

- Mr. Jackson: It surprlsed us also. We're not used to such things. We
were. presented in the middle of negotiating with a package, and that we were
informed it’s a take it or leave it, and the money was in there, we never d1scussed
money. Never discussed money, they just said here and threw all this money on the
- table. :

Mr. Furfaro: - - _Aﬁd well that is very different from what I'm used to. |

. . N T
Mr. Jackson: Because that is not our concern.
Mr. Furfaro: I understand that. I like, if you take most companies

D.Q., you'll find out that wages are not the driving force. Wages are somewhere
down three (3) and four (4). It’s the issues and conditions, and staffing levels that
are some of the priority items and...
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Mr. Jackson: I think you heard the nurses chanting outside about what
was important to them. ' LI .

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, and all that stands right now. You have three (3)
outstanding items. Part of this summary that I'm doing, is also for the benefit for
the public, who really wants to know and cares what’s happening to its hospital. So
if I understand it, we have the...I don’t know the term now, we have the ratio issue
of nurse’s patients, then I believe we still have some overtime issues outstanding, or
callbacks. : :

Mr. Jackson: We have...I'm feeling very guilty that I'm stealing the
thunder from several other people who wish to testify here, but we do have three (3)
issues. The main overriding issue is again how many patients these nurses are
going to be taking care of. Yes, we have a problem in the operating room, we’re
having great difficulty. These things are somewhat complex, but it’s essentially
when a nurse is on-call after her shift, the question is when is she on-call? It makes
a difference and it does make a difference on salary, yes it does. The other issue is
something called standby in (inaudible). That’s where they call up a nurse and say
we don’t need you today because we don’t think anything’s going to happen, so we’ll
pay you some money to sit by your phone and if something happens then you come
in. I tried to describe that to Mayor Baptiste and suggest that he could save a
truckload of money for the County by doing to the same thing with the firefighters.
Have them sit at home, if there’s a fire, you call them up and call them in.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay, I'm familiar with this thing (inaudible) meaning
visitor industry (inaudible). Hawaiian Airlines does the same for pilots and flight
attendants, they stay close to a phone, therefore they might find out between this
time to that time they could be called and they're gomg to Samoa at 11:00 in the
mormng I understand that term

Mr. Jackson: Well the plane flight may or may not take off, but I can
tell you that a heart attack will occur and an injury will occur.

Mr. Furfaro: 'Yeah, you know I want to share with you, I've been
through many labor negotiations and you know D.Q., I want you to feel, I'm asking
these questions so they’re surfaced on the table. And I know you mentioned it’s
taking some thunder away from the others, but if we ask this (inaudible) questions,
of which gives you more time to answer, all of us will have a better framework in
you know, understanding the terminology and so forth, so...

Mr. Jackson: Thank you.

Mr. Furfaro: So I agree, you can’t, you can’t compare a flight to the
South Pacific with the same urgency of a heart attack, I can agree with that. But
we’re talking about the principle of the callback or the (inaudible) of which seems to
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be. a point that the two (2) groups can .get together on, and so we want to
understand it better that’s all. . . ¢

Mr. Jackson: We can get together on that, not to get into specifics but
we made a concession on that, yes we did. . :
| Mr. Furfaro: Okay. |
Mr. Jackson: Which was ;1c;t accepted by thelof:}{er sicie.l ’ I
Mr. Jackson: But we're prepared to do it' again... ;
Mr. Furfaro: But you're talking?‘ ‘ _ - . | Jk
Mr. Jackson: We’fe hoping for a miraclg; this afternooﬁ, yes we are. | '
' Mr. Furfaro:  Did I gét, I onl& got tvx;o (2) of the real issues. | They saiél
there was a third issue. , ¢
Mr. dJ acl;son: _ " The calIback issue in éurgery. i!
Mr. Furfaro: In surgery? |
Mr. Jackson: o Yes.
Mr. Furfaro: ,' Okay. And 1 apologlze I dldn’t mean to take the thunder

away from any up coming speakers, but the amount of people are going to come up
in three (3) minute increments and I wanted to make sure that we understood...

Mr. Jackson: I think I abused my three (3) minutes...

Mr. Furfaro: - Okay. . o PR ‘
Mr. Tokioka: Let me do this D.Q., we're going to take one (1) more
question from you and you know I know there’s a lot. I have a whole stack of
speakers here, and normally what happens in pubhc testlmony like this is, we have
people who sign up and after everybody has spoken, then if there are people Who
probably didn’t want to talk that are going to come up and talk because they feel the
desire to do that. So I'm sure were going to be here awhile, and I do know that’I
think a few of you need to be at a meeting at 1:00, and we’re hopeful that we’re done
by then, because we need you to be at that meeting at 1:00 p.m.
Mr. Jackson: I hope, I hope I'm not being a little bit too difficult for you,
conducting negotiations in front.of a camera with another entity is, is problemat1c,
it really is. '

i
i

|
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Mr. Furfaro: First I need to correct you D. Q We are not negotiating
a...we’re understanding what the parameters are. :

Mr. Jackson: Because I'm talking about the negotiations. °

Mr. Furfaro: And...that’s what we’re trying to understand, and I've
been doing this for many years in my career as well, so I hope I did not impose any
uncomfortable time, we just want to understand.

Mr. Jackson: No, you didn’t I’'m...I assure you, my mouth is ready to go,
but the normal process is...

Mr. Tokioka: Yeah, and D.Q...

Mr. Jackson: Conduct negotiations in the media, which is what actually
is happening. '

Mr. Tokioka: And I know there are a lot of other people who want to
speak, so Councilmember Rapozo had his hand up, I will take one (1) more question
for you and than we’ll move on to the next speaker. If Councilmembers want to ask
you additional questions, we can do that when everyone else is done.
Councilmember Rapozo? : '

" Mr. Rapozo: Thank you, and my question is has nothing to do with the
negotiations, it’s about SHPDA You mentioned you did talk to them and they
said...

Mr. Jackson: | I did npt talk to them.
 Mr. Rapozo: 'Oh,‘I’m sorry, okay.- |
Mr. J ackso;lz But I...this information was conveyed to me...
"Mr. Rapozo: - Okay.
Mr. Jackson: That people will discuss it with...
Mr. Rapozo: Is it your understanding that SHPDA will not act unless

they get something from this Council? Or I mean I would assume if that’s their job,
that they should do it regardless but if they re not moving, is that your
understanding, again SHPDA...
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Mr. Jackson: No, no, not all. It’s the same as any other entity, such
as...unless somebody asks you to do something, I don’t think you're sitting around
looking for things to talk about.

Mr. Rapozo: Right, but has the Nurses Association formally asked
SHPDA to do something or has any person...

Mr. Jackson: Nurses Ass_bciati_on will not ask SHPDA to do this. This is
something that community people do. Now I've asked of you, as a member of our
community, now the Nurses Association can well take care of itself, but no, it is not
asking...

Mr. Rapozo: So it has never been asked for SHPDA to do their job, and

who’s... Ty
Mr. J ackson: - Not yet.
Mr. Rapozo: Who’s on the focus group on Kaua‘i, and I mean how big ié‘
that group? SN : : :
Ms. Yukimura: . It’s the subarea, sub-area ;:(;uh¢il.. o ’ , |
Mr. Jackson: ‘Idonot khow, forgi_vé me. L T _' }:
Mr. Rapozo: No okay, and neither do I. This i is the first I've ever heard

of SHPDA was a couple of days ago when Councilmember Tokioka spoke to me.
This is all new for us and pardon, I guess excuse our ignorance, this is all new for
us.

Mr. Jackson: That only occurs when there’s a change in our healthcare
system, that’s a normal process. When there’s a change, then there should be public
hearing and so we'’re calling for a public hearing on it now, because clearly there has
been quite a change from what was expected to what is occurring.

Mr. Rapozo: But the request was, the Nursing Association you said did
not make a formal... ‘

‘

Mr. Jackson: Has not made that, no.
Mr. Rapozo:  Thankyou. . = - :
Mr. Tokioka: You know, I'm, I want to go to the next speakér

Councilmember Yukimura because...

Ms. Yukimura: That’s fine.
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Mr. Tokioka: He’s been up here. While I know there’s many, many
people who want to speak today, and Mr. Jackson told me specifically when we were
meeting to discuss this that he wanted to give the maJorlty of the t1me to the nurses
to speak... -

Mr. Jackson: Well I've failed so far clearly...

Mr. Tokioka: - No, but it’s not your fault, we, this body asked the
questions, it wasn’t your fault D.Q., thank you very much. The next registered
speaker we have is Michele Rundgren.

MICHELE RUNDGREN: Good morning...
Mr. Tokioka: Followed by Donna Moore. Good morning Ms. Rundgren.

Ms. Rundgren: My name is Michele Rundgren. I've lived on Kaua‘i for
ten (10) years. Besides being a concerned citizen today, my brother Jonathan Grey
is a nurse at Wilcox Hospital. Five (5) years ago my brother and his fellow nurses
warned Kaua‘i of the HPH (Hawai‘i Pacific Health) takeover and recommended
against it. I didn’t pay attention because I didn’t see how it would affect me, but I
do now. A year after that, I noticed many of my physicians were leaving the island.
On May 1st of this year, I made my annual appointment with my fourth OBGYN;
my first three (3) doctors have left Wilcox. I was told the earliest appointment
would be August 28. I will wait four (4) months for my doctor. I know that the
acuity system or patient classification system the nurses ask for costs about $50,000
to implement. We know that HPH spent over $250,000 to bring in off-island nurses
and security for this strike. I don’t understand why they wouldn’t spend less money
for our better care. I've heard Kathy Clark say that the hospital is losing money,
and didn’t Wilcox have $25 million in assets when HPH took over? Unlike Honolulu
hospitals, we do not have the extra 24-hour facilities and ancillary support systems,
such as pharmacies and labs that the big hospltals have. That’s why our doctors,
nurses, and patients need more nurses: onthe ﬂoor that’s why we need a
classification or an acuity system. I hope they contact the Kilauea branch of the
Kaua‘i Medical Clinic and ask why they withdrew their affiliation with Wilcox
- Hospital. I hope you’ll be able to contact physicians to ask why. Fifteen (15) years
ago on the Mainland, I was a patient at a hospital that didn’t have safe staffing.
After an emergency birth of my son, I was transferred from ICU to a regular ward.
Because I had an open caesarian wound, I couldn’t sit up, so nurses propped me up
to use a bed pan and holding on to a bar. For 20 minutes, I called out unable to
move or let go of the bar. Twenty (20) minutes later another nurse came in saying,
P'm so sorry we’re under staffed, we have too many patients, and I'm so sorry your
sutures have ripped. I don’t wish this on you, but please try to picture your family
members in a bed at Wilcox. Would you want any of them crying out for help
because the nurses have too many patients, too many to pay attention to your mom,
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or your brother, your child? I know my brother and his fellow nurses are risking
their (inaudible) and jobs, to make Wilcox Hospital a'safe place for my family, for
your family, for all of Kaua‘i’s families. I hope you'll be able to get to the truth i in
this crisis. Hope you’ll be able to hold an open public hearing on the Certificate of
Need, and I hope you’ll be able to help end this strike. Mahalo for your time.

-

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Ms. Rundgren. -
Ms. Rundgren: I don’t know anything about medicine.

Mr. Tokioka: | Councilmembers are...probably still ask you questions, so,
I know Councilmember Yukimura has a question for you.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes Ms. Rundgren, Michele. I've gone through two (2)
similar experiences like you, I'm a patient of the Kilauea Clinic, and I also tried to
make an appointment with the gynecologists and had to wait two (2) months, so I
know what you're talking about. On the other hand, it occurred to me recently that
the appointment with the gynecologists is under Kaua'i Med1cal Group, and I'm not
too sure how the two (2) operate. - . &

Ms. Rundgren: I just knov;r we lost a lot of physicién_s.
Ms. Yukimura: I know we have. -

Ms Rundgren ~ And that’s affecting me and does this have anything to do
with it? . . ' _ ‘

Ms. Yukimura:  Right. Regardlng your point about $25 m1111on in asset§
my understanding, that may be true, but the other issue is operating budget. And
my understanding, if 'm wrong someone will correct me, was there was about a $20
million deficit in the Wilcox Hospital operating budget, so they couldn’t go on that
way when they decided to go on, go with HPH. So and it wasn’t that easy of a
decision because if you keep losing money, at.some point the hospital’s not going to
operate.. . . : N . ok

Ms. Rundgren: Right, I guess I'll then T would go back to'l.ny $50,000 for
an acuity system but now we’re spending over, I know it’s over a quarter of a

million dollars for... . . - - R y

Ms. Yukimura: Yeah it doesn’t make sense to me either, although I don

know what the long term costs are working under that acuity system or.. 0

cof
H

Ms Rundgren nght.‘ L .‘ L v,

:4!‘ .
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Ms. Yukimura: If that is the whole, if I'm sure the software system alone
is not the whole acuity system that it’s about human 1nteract1on and Judgment and
all of that so..

Ms. Rundgren: Right.

Ms. Yukimura: I just try how to see how that would work...

Ms. Rundgren: Maybe we’ll find out.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, yes, but I mean I, so anyway and maybe someone will
correct me, but the issues that (inaudible) going with HPH, I don’t know if that was
the right decision either and what the other options were..

Ms. Rungrin: I don’t either.

Ms. Yukimura: You know, but if we were in big deficit and it looked like
they were moving toward an (inaudible) situation for the employees and the
community, that makes it something we really have to look at, so thanks. But

thank you for coming forth, I know you always speak out.

Ms. Rundgren: But usually I'm funny.

Mr. Tokioka: - You are very funny, I saw you on...

Ms. Rundgren: IwishI was funny today, butvitts too serious.

Ms. Yukimura: Well tnese subjects are not funny.

Mr. Tokioka: I saw you on...emcee the bid for bachelors and I was in

stitches listening to you.
Ms. Rundgren: You know your wife tried to sell you...
Mr. Tokioka: No it wasn’t me...

Ms. Rundgren: I had to end it on a funny note, but thank you guys 1
really hope you can help our community out

R T A S

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Michele.
Ms. Rundgren: Anything else?

Mr. Tokioka: Any other questions for Michele?  Councilmember
Furfaro? ' C ‘
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Mr. Furfaro: Yes, I Just want to make a statement for the V1ce Chair’s,
for the Kauai County Subarea Health Planning Council. I was once the Kaua‘
representative, I want to disclose that, when the emergency phone systems were
put on the island. And I also...we’re not dealing with that now, I want to make it
very clear that for the company I represent as the asset management, two (2) of my
employees, the business agent and the Director of Human Resources are in fact on
that committee. And I just wanted to disclose that Lisa Ubay and Alan Klmura, )
just to disclose that.

Mr. Tokioka: So while we’re on that, I have the list of the people from
Kaua‘i who are on the list Mr. Jackson and its Lili Bryan-Conant, Mr. Alan Kimura,
Zachary Octavio, Trinidad Raval, Ehzabeth Ubay, and Stanley Yates are the
members of the subarea health group. Thank you very much Ms. Rundgren and the
next speaker we have is Donna Moore followed by Janet Underhill. If Janet is in
here, maybe you want to come up and s1t in the front so we can expedite the, there
we go. Thank you very much.

DONNA MOORE: Good morning, I Would like to ded1cate this to our brother
Chris who's battling illness and our sister Denise Who is by his side, ,They are with
us in spirit. Where have all the nurses gone..

Chair Asing: Pull the mike close.
Mr. Tokioka: - Yeah...
Ms. Moore: Who will care for me, these are questions we should be

asking ourselves.

Mr. Tokioka:- Donna, Donna can you turn the mike directly, it’s
on...there you go. - ‘ Coy

Ms. Moore: Where have all the nurses gone and who will care for me?
These are questions we should be asking ourselves. A nurse is a professional who
cares for patients 24/7. A nurse assesses the physical, mental, and emotional needs
of her patients, as well of being aware of their spiritual needs and the needs of their
families. Each patient is a unique individual. A nurse assesses the needs of each
patient then creates a plan of care. This assessment includes physician’s orders,
history, lab values, x-rays, EKG’s, as well as knowing the medications. A nurse
implements her care plan by coordinating the members of the medical team,
physician, pharmacist, respiratory, and others as well as the most important
member of the team, the patient. Nurses are patient advocates by investigating
different avenues of care, providing information, and allowing patients and their
families to make informed decisions. A nurse continues to assess the patient’s
progress, being aware of signs and symptoms of improvement or complication, then
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prepares the patient for discharge by providing instructions and home -care,
medication, and follow-up appointments. Now multiply that by five (5), now try six
(6), seven (7), eight (8), if a nurse has five (5) patients, the maximum time spent at
the bedside per patient, per hour is approximately ten (10) minutes. If that ratio is
increased, the time maximum time spent at the bedside per patient, per hour
decreases exponentially. How much time do you want for your care?

(Change to side B of tape 1)

Ms. Moore: Cardiac, surgical, infectious, or labor and delivery. When
a nurse has a group of similar patients, even though unique in their own way, care
can be streamlined.” For instance, cardiac patients need to be mobilized in
increments, while closely monitoring physical status and response to medications.
Wilcox Hospital has a diverse population in a much smaller setting. Wilcox
Hospital does not have the support that is available at Straub, such as 24-hour
pharmacy, residents and interns, imaging and housekeeping. A nurse at Wilcox can
have a varied assignment with patients such as pediatric, cardiac, post-op, a
transfer from ICU, and one (1) ready to discharge. The patients can range from a
few days old to well into their 90s. A nurse at Wilcox needs to be knowledgeable,
skilled, flexible, and compassionate. The nurses of Wilcox feel that the matrix does
not reflect the needs of the patients and the nurses. The nurses can be
overwhelmed with a patient load that is diverse in age, development, disease
process, and condition. The matrix does not take into account the varied and
adaptable nature of the care required for each patient. The nurses at Wilcox need
to be respected for their professional input, not dictated to. There is a nursing
shortage throughout the world, nurses at Wilcox need to be recognized and
nurtured in the professional development so they can provide excellent care for
their patients and be proud of that achievement.

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you very much Ms. Moore for that testimony. I
think it really helps to visualize the ratios when you talk about one (1) ten (10)
minutes for every hour, so thank you for helping us to understand that visual
picture. Any questions for Ms. Moore? Councilmember Furfaro?

P ST T P

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, you mentioned after hours, is there no housekeeping

staff on to change bedding after certain hours or... ' '

Ms. Moore: Actually, I work in the intensive care unit, and there is no
housekeeping between midnight and 6:00 a.m., so if we had to transfer a patient out
to the floor to receive another patient from the ER, we had to clean the room, the
bed, the floors...

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you for clearing that up for me.
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Ms. Moore: Also in the night shift, if we go to the OR, which I'm
currently now employed in, we have to clean the operatmg room in the middle of the
night as well.

<3

Mr. Furfaro: | Thank you. | 'Q L _. : o . _ | -

Mr. Tokioka: | Counéihhember Rapozn? | ‘.

Mr. Rapozo: Was it always that way or just since the change 1n
management? . S

Ms. Moore: ‘It’.s.alw'ayls been Ithaﬁ way with the hhuéekeeping.

Mr. Rapozo: | ~ Okay, thank you. | _ . | , o ,

Mr. Tokioka: Any other questlonls‘? Counc11member Yukimura? 4

. [
Ms. Yukimura: No, Just thank you for a very detalled and graphlc picture

of what you all have to deal with. I appreciate it.. i
. i i

. 1 X . i

Ms. Moore: . I worked at Wilcox for 16 years. I worked in the ICU, I
floated to the medical ﬂoors, and now I'm in the operatlng room,. so I've seen the
hospital from a lot of different aspects._ R e oy

Ms. Yukimura: I can tell you’re -x;ery knowiedgeable, thank you.

Ms. Moore: | Thank you. ;
R S o

Mr. Tokioka: Hold on, hold on. Councilmember Furfaro.

Mr. Furfaro: - I just want to get claﬁﬁcation the hous'ekeeping from

midnight to 6:00 in the mornlng, it’s always been that way, always?

*

Ms. Moore: As far as..
" Mr. Furfarh: - I mean that is not a change?
Ms. Moore: - No. .
Mr. Furfaro: Cerfain depa_rtmenfs, okay, thank you.. . 4
Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Ms. Moore. The next speaker is J anét

Underhill followed by Jay Gonzalez. dJay. if you could come up and have a seat,
wherever you are, oh there you are.
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“Janet Underhill: Good morning Councilmembers, my name is Jan

Underhill, and I have been a resident of this community for the last 18 years. I am
~ an intensive care and emergency medicine nurse specialist. I have been involved in
community outreach programs not only in healthcare field, but several teen
programs. I've been part of Wilcox Hospital, employed as a nurse specialist since
1988 until January of this year. Of interest, five (5) years ago I testified at the
public hearing for Certificate of Need Number 01-07, which allowed Hawai‘i Pacific
Health to take over Wilcox Hospital. I sat in a chair very much like this one (1) over
at the War Memorial Convention Center on August 14, 2001. Here’s a copy of my
testimony I presented. I expressed my deepest concern about the future of our
hospital and its implications on the community. Sadly, the future has become the
present, and now look at the turmoil that has resulted and the major consequences
to our Wilcox community hospital.

Five (5) years ago I asked about the future. Will we be left an empty shell
like so many small companies gobbled up by big corporations? Then I watched and
experienced the fall of a hard working Wilcox dynasty as Hawai‘l Pacific Health
began selling off their assets, assets that the people of Kaua‘i had paid for. This
month alone they want to sell the Wilcox Adult Day Care service. They've asked for
a Certificate of Need in order to do that, the goal is to gain $200,000 from that
transaction. Sixty (60) Kaua‘ nurses and physicians have decisively objected and
rightfully requested a public hearing by the State Health Planning and
Development Agency in order for the Kaua‘i community to come in and understand
the reasons behind it.

My interest is community care and I am concerned about -patient care
services. Five (5) years ago I'd asked, will Hawaii Pacific Health provide
assurances to the people of Kaua‘i that patient services will not be consolidated
elsewhere and remain on Kaua‘i, thus maintaining the current level of (inaudible)
ability to healthcare? Then I watched as the great exodus of doctors ensued. I
watched as Kaua'i lost specialist after specialist. I watched as these five (5) people
left the island, I watched as doctors resigned from Kaua‘i Medical Clinic unending
progression. Four (4) resigned this month alone. I also witnessed and experienced
a quarter of the Wilcox intensive care nurses resigned. Then I witnessed and
experienced 120 nurses just walked out the door from Wilcox and went on strike for
valued issues that concerned community health quality assurance. I do not want to
witness and experience a fall in the healthcare system of my community.

Councilmembers, I'm asking you, I'm asking for your truthful consideration
to help Kaua‘i’s nurses, to help Kaua‘’’s physicians, and to help Kaua‘’s patients
and for our ‘ochana. Please, please request that the State Health Planning and
Development Agency open a public hearing on Kaua‘i regarding Certificate of Need
Number 01-07. It’s their job and their responsibility. It will not be difficult for
them. We beg you to send a request and allow the community to speak on this
important issue, allow the community to an (inaudible) and correct what appears to
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be a mistake. Again, I thank you for this opportumty to speak today. May I answer
any questions? Would you like a copy of, I have..

+  Mr. Tekloka Yes:‘ o T I ‘-";;.
’3_-,. . . - H R T t
) Ms Underhill I also have the apphcatlon for certlﬁcate, the or1g1nal
application for Certificate of Need. : s "

b S R . L ey . N -

Mr. Tokioka: " Okay.. ‘, s L . _ : '
Ms. Underhill: If you would like a copy. . = o o

Mr. Tokioka: Great if you have that, we could make coples of it because
the Councilmembers...I haven’t even seen that, none of us have I think have seen
the Certificate of Need yet SO..

Ms. Underhill: The original, . the ongmal one (1). This is just the
application for the original one (1) back in 2001. :
Mr. Tokioka: Whatever is in place neW. . 'A ‘\ oy

: : S , _ o ' L

Ms. Underhill: ., .Okay. - ' : o, s

Mr. Tokioka: Any questions Councilmembers? L. o

Mr. Rapozo: (Inaudible) requested if anyone has written testimony, if
they could provide us for copies as the speakers come up, so we can keep. That's
just a request. -

Mr. Tokioka: Any : questions for -Ms. Underhill? Councilmember
Yukimura? - . : ’ - ;
- Ms. Yukimura: Hi, thank you for your very compelling testimony. You
mentloned there is a certificate of need presently before SHPDA?: : oo
i
.. Ms. Underhill: Well what 1 understand was that 60 nurses, that'’s the one
(1) you re talking about, the one (1) regarding the Adult Day Care Center?

Ms. Yukimura: - I guess I wasn’t clear, but I, from my understanding being
was the Adult Day Care Center Services have already been sold off?
. f.

Ms. Underhill: No, there was an announcement in that little, in the back
of the newspaper last week. e _— o

*

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, about a proposed sale?
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Ms. Underhill: | Right.

Ms. Yukimura: So that has to be approved by SHPDA?
Ms. Underhill: Right.

Ms. Yukimura: As part of the...

Ms. Underhill: Yes.

t

Ms. Yukimura: The required process, so that’s not a done deal?
Ms. Underhill: No, no. -

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Ms. Underhill: Not that I know of.

Ms. Yukimura: But it's an example .of what you see as a sale of
community assets that the community has bullt that that’s not staymg in the hand
of the community. : .

Ms. Underhill: Oh absolutely, along Wlth the long-term care, along w1th
the properties that have gone..

Ms. Yukimura: Right, okay that’s a very important point. Okay I will
look with interest at the information that you have, thank you. :

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you Ms. Underhill. The next speaker is Jay
Gonzalez followed by Angie Pigao Cadiz. Angie, if you could-come up to the front.

JAY GONZALEZ: Good morning members.
Mr. Tokioka: Good morning Mr. Gonzalez.

Mr. Gonzalez: I want to thank you for taking the time and listening to
our issues. There’s a few statements that were made by some of the managements
that really stood out for me. One (1) of them was actually our PR person, Lani
Yukimura, she said “a nurse is a nurse.” She is partially correct that all nurses do
get trained in the basics of nursing. My response is that a nurse is not just nurse.
Our local nurses are culturally competent and are able to provide and care, provide
care, and maintain our patient’s dignity and respect. Our nurses live and breathe
Kaua'i and its culture. We are such a small community, close knit and because we
all have family and friends that know each other. These (inaudible) nurses that
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were brought down are primarily from the mainland and a few from O‘ahu. They
are oriented into the hospital, what I understand, isn’t about a day. They cannot
learn our culture. They stay here for two (2) to three (3) weeks at a time. They
cannot assimilate our culture in that short of period.. The continuity of care is
affected, there’s always a new nurse coming in taking care of a patient. A patient
may see this new nurse and they need to get used to, to this nurse. And for our
local nurses, a lot of the patients know them by first name and see them at Wal-
Mart, see them in the community, and socialize with them.

There’s another statement that was made by Kathy Clark, saying that we are
wanting more money, and not wanting to do more work, and that we had lack of
critical thinking. That is an insult and a slap in the face to our nurses who care for
the community, and have cared for your families, could be your mother or your
father, son, daughter, brother, or sister. It is easier for her to say that from the
ringside, rather than when you aren’t the one (1) in the inside fighting and standing
up for patient safety. The nurses are the ones at the bedside, providing care 24
hours a day. We have nurses that have large, have been from the Mainland, and
have experience from these large facilities. The doctors come up to ask us how our
patients are doing, we carry out the orders, we assess the patients, and we tell the
doctor if the patient is progressing towards better health, or worsening, Kathy goes
further'on to state that Mainland nurses have more experience and have higher
skill levels. These mainland nurses come from specialized units. One (1) unit may
be specifically cardiac unit, (inaudible), or pediatric unit. Wilcox does not have
these specialized units, Wilcox has such a diverse range- of patients, we care for
infants on up to the elderly. Your local nurses are jack-of-all-trades. We have not
refused any assignments, we have pediatrics mixed with heart attack patients, and
confused elderly patients, a type of situation where anyone of these has a potential
to turn for the worst. There was a full page ad in The Garden Island newspaper
about five (5) years ago regarding the HPH merger and that some of our veteran
nurses has testified against. There was also a letter written by Dr. Kim, a founding
member of Wilcox, that explained how (inaudible) was now a business. There has
been an exodus of doctors from Wilcox. These are all signs that we should not be
ignoring. We cannot sit on a time bomb and-wait for it to explode. Now is the time
to act. Thank you.

Mr. Tokioka: Thank you very much Mr. Gonzalez. Any questions?
Councilmember Furfaro? o .o » :

Mr. Furfaro: Maybe I should’ve asked this earher The RNs and the
LPNs, are you all one (1) business unit for labor... L ¢

Mr. Gonzalez:  We're in the HNA.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay it’s not two (2) different... B : i|
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Mr. Gonsalvez: No, it’s the same.
Mr. Furfaro: Thank you.

Mr. Gonsalvez: Thank you.

Mr. Tokioka: Angie Pigao Cadlz, followed by B111y De Costa. Go ahead
Angie. Good morning, thank you for being here.

AGGIE PIGAO-CADIZ: Slight correction Councilman, it is Aggie.
Mr. Tokioka: Oh, I'm sorry.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: And thank you for allowing me to come to you this
morning, I am Aggie Pigao-Cadiz, I'm the executive director for the Hawai‘i Nurses
Association. As you've and you are no doubt aware, 140, roughly 140 RNs and
LPNs are into day 24 of a strike that should never have happened. They have been
out on that line for 24 hours for 24 days not because they want more money or more
benefits, but because they are concerned for the patient safety. They are concerned
for the safety and welfare of the residents of Kaua‘l.. The code of ethics for nurses
includes among others and let me quote here, “the nurse practices with compassion
and respect for the inherent dignity, worth, and uniqueness of every individual,
unrestricted by considerations of social or economic status, personal attributes, or
the nature of health problems. The nurse’s primary commitment is to the patient,
whether that person be a individual, a family, a group, or the community. The
nurse is responsible and accountable for individual nursing practice and determines
the appropriate tasks, consistent with the nurse’s obligation to provide optimum
patient care. In addition, the nurse participates in establishing, maintaining, and
improving healthcare environments and conditions of employment conducive to the
provision of quality healthcare and consistent with the values of the profession
through individual and collective action.” The nurses at Wilcox have demonstrated
their belief in these code of ethics, they’re so committed to patient safety and want
to work in a healthcare environment that would allow them to provide quality
healthcare that they have sacrificed their very livelihood for patient safety. They
recognize that to continue to work in an environment that is consistently short
staffed is to invite negative patient outcomes, results that the nurses are not willing

to be partied to, especially when they know that those negative outcomes could be

prevented very easily.

When Hawai‘i Pacific Health applied for a certificate of need in 2001 to merge
Wilcox Health System with Hawai‘l Pacific Health, their application indicated the
merger would, and I quote, “enable Wilcox Health System to continue its mission to
the people of Kaua‘i; it would enhance the level and quality of clinical service for the
people of Kaua‘i.” The application further stated, “the merger fit with Hawai‘ with
Hawaii Health Performance Plan that is SHPDA’s H2P2 objectives in regard to
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healthcare delivery system that is,” and I quote, “responsive to community regional
needs and addresses access to care, continuity of care, consequent participation,
recess management, cost containment, and quality management.” The application
also stated, “at a minimum, the quality of care is expected to remain consistent,”
end quote. The association questions the continued adherence to the statements
made in the application for the Certificate of Need. Since the merger you've heard
that there have been at least two (2) management of peoples, as well as an exodus of
physicians and nurses. In addition, the staffing level of nurses has continued to
deteriorate at the same time that the level of care needed to provide safe and
appropriate patient care has increased. With the decrease with professional
healthcare team members, how can Wilcox Hospital and HPH continue to assert
that the level and quality of clinical services to the people of Kaua‘i are enhanced
without a validated patient acuity classification system that enables the bedside
nurse to participate in establishing, maintaining; and improving the healthcare
environment in order to provide quality healthcare. How is Wilcox-and HPH being
responsive to community needs and maintaining a consistent level of quality care?
Is “constituent participation limited to Wilcox Hospital Foundation and. board
members?” What is the mechanism for employees and residents of Kaua‘i to voice
their concerns and issues related to the management of the Hospital? At one (1)
point in time, Wilcox Memorial was recognized as one of the top 100 hospitals in the
country; that was along time ago, and it was because of its efforts to provide a wide
range of services for the purpose for improving the health status of Kaua‘i’s people.
In the past few years, the hospital seems to relinquish that desire to help improve
the health status of the people and replaced it with the bottom line of the business
venue. With administrative decisions regarding Wilcox being made primarily by
the O‘ahu based HPH management team, the only recourse of the people of Kaua‘i
to have their concerns heard is through the Certificate of Need review process. A
request from you to SHPDA asking for a review, which would include a pubhc
hearing, is what’s needed at this time. At some point in time the strike will end, the
nurses will go back to the bedside, if conditions are not changed patient safety w111
still be an issue. '

Mr. Tokioka: Aggie, the three (3) m1nutes is passed but if you can
summarlze can, you summarize or come back. .

. Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: ;I can,let me just finish up.
Mr. Tokioka: Okay. - .

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: You know I grew up in.Puhi. I still have family on the
Westside. I would very much like to be sure, be able to assure my family members
that if they have need for hospitalization, that they would be able to receive the
kind of quality care that I know that the nurses of Wilcox can give. I would also, 11ke
to assure my family, relatives, my family, that they will receive that care in an
environment that respects and values its employees. Thank you. : V.
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Mr. Tokioka: Thank you. Any questions for Aggie?
Mr. Rapozo: I have a question.
Mr. Tokioka: Councilmember Rapozo"
Mr. Rapozo: Thank you Aggie, you said you’re the Executive Director

of Hawai‘i Nurses Association (HNA)? _ .
. . X

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: That I am, sir.
Mr. Rapozo: Okay. I know the quality of care...I was a guest at Wilcox
for I guess about eight (8) days, awhile back... .

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: I presumed you received excellent care.

Mr. Rapozo: Much better than many of the hotels I've stayed at,
honestly. Not that I want to go back, but I fully understand what our nurses do as
opposed to other nurses, so I don’t think that’s an issue, and I don’t think that’s
even in dispute right now. I think we are very proud of what our nurses here at
Wilcox do, but I don’t know if you were here when I asked D.Q. about the...if the
HNA had requested anything from SHPDA. Our Clerk was nice enough to provide
us with the SHPDA manual, and it’s quite clear that is (inaudible) their duties, and
in fact according to this, our local Council is supposed to meet on a monthly ‘basis.
And I don’t even know if they do, I don’t know, I plan to find out, but is HNA
planning to request, make a formal request to them, or if not why, why wasn’t that
been done?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: HNA can make a formal request; however, past history
for HNA has been that because these are local 1ssues, we would go and make a
request of th1s, th1s State Health, oh I forget what the..

Mr. Tokioka: SHPDA?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Not SHPDA...

‘Mr. Tokioka: Oh.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: SHPDA is the big company, the big organization
(inaudible) organization, that is comprised of subarea council.

Mr. Tokioka: Right.
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Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Each sub-area Council sends a representative to the State
Health Planning... : .

Mr. Rapozo: Yeah the H... SH...
- Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: 1I... N

Mr. Rapozo: . , .CC...- . . IR

PSR . ) ey

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes.

Mr. Rapozo: Coordinating Coui;cil?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Coordinating Couﬁcil, thank you
Mr. Rapozo: . , It’sincredible what the State can do...

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes, and by thé way, SHPDA, you also asked the question
earlier, SHPDA is part and is within the realm of the Department of Health and
under the direction of the Director of Health. . _ ]

Mr. Rapozo:- . Correct. | : P o _ i

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: But HNA, as far as HNA is concerned, what we’d like to
see happen is for the locals to take care of the local hearings, and when it comes to
SHICC, to the State Coordinating Council that’s when Hawai1 Nurses Association
will go in and either make the request to be heard, to have a public hearing there,
versus the simple, the closed hearing of SHICC, and provide our testimony at that
point.

Mr. Rapozo: .  Okay, I guess I'm just confused why our local, the local
board, that subarea committee, if you look at their responsibilities really you would
think that they would’'ve picked up on this issue and take some sort of action,
because part of it, the assessment of the local... ’

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: That’s right.

Mr. Rapozo: And I'm hearing that they haven’t done that and I don’t
know, again this is all new to us as well. So agam forgive the questlons, but we
just don’t know and.. « o

o

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yeah.

Mr. Rapozo: And we’ll definitely find out.
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Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Thank you, that would be very much appreciated. I have
no idea whether or not the Kaua‘i Subarea Council has met on this issue since
June 24t, T don’t know if they had, if they had any plans to do anything to that
effect. We do not, I do personally do not know the subarea Council members. And
by the way, those members, subarea Councils need to be made up of a cross section
of the community, so there are business as well as health care folks on that subarea
Council. And they are not...they are nommated by the commumty and have
(1naud1b1e) appointments.

Mr. Tokioka: Right, okay thank you, Councilmember Rapozo.
Councilmember Furfaro? ' "

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you, thank you for your testimony. - As I mentioned
earlier, back in the 80s, I served on the, this health plan subarea Council. And
you're right, they chose someone from labor, someone from health, someone from
human resources, but I, if I remember the rules, if there was an opportunity
statewide for a program initiative, that this could be addressed to the State and
then therefore allocated out to the various Councils. And that’s exactly what
happened...the late Councilman Tehada and myself when we served on the unit
that looked at the emergency responses, and we worked for the cell phone because
there was a need. Do you know if the Association of Nurses has actually suggested
or sent anything on this system that actually tackles ratios, services ratios? I mean
has the nurses union in the State said to SHPDA here’s a new technique, here’s a
new piece of equipment that deserves a Statewide hearing, because in the program,
certain services and (inaudible) allocations are actually part of SHPDA'’s review. Do
you know if that’s happened? I mean Statewide, promotmg this new electronic
management of allocations?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: The short answer, Councilman, is no.
Mr. Furfaro: ‘No?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: There has not been an effort in that regard. We as a, as
the various facilities that we represent in collective bargaining have come up for
contract for new rules and negotiations. We have always made it a point to bring in
concern for patient safety and taking a look at implementing the American Nurses
Association guidelines for the implementation for nurses staffing, which speaks to
identifying and classifying the level of care needed for individuals based on their
condition, which includes discussion between management, supervisors, and
bedside nurses, that’s all part of the principles of nurse staffing. And those
guidelines have been out for I believe two (2) or three (3) years now. Every year
since the principles for nurse staffing came out, was published by American Nurses
Association, the Hawai‘l Nurses Association has gone to the State Legislature to see
about getting something similar, not necessarily. what California’s nurse ratios
because that’s not what we're looking at. At each time and again this past session,
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we were told by various representatives and senators that that is a negotiable item
and that it should not be part of the Legislature, it should not be legislative. Each
time we have taken it to the negotiation table, we have been, we have not been
successful. And looking and having real discussion and implementing those
guidelines, the Wilcox nurses have the, have the courage, I was going to use
something else, have the courage to stand up for that very issue. They have, they
are amongst all the nurses that have come to the negotiation table in...since 2005
when I took this position as Executive Director, it is the Wilcox nurses that have
taken, have had the courage and strength and will to make this a real issue.

Mr. Furfaro: I see, thank you.
) Mr._ Tokioka: . Councilmember Yukimura.

Ms. Yukimura: . Yes,, it’s great to see someone, a 1oca1 girl make good
actually. So what is it that...that HNA is bringing to the table then in terms of
what you want from staffing, if it’s not a ratio, or maybe you could make those
guidelines available to us that, is that what you... . |

- ' yoL i

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: We'll be happy to. ,
Ms. Yukimura: Is that what you’re bringing to the ta‘ble, I mean in tefhis
of what you're asking for? -

i
it

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: That is part of the discussion, part of the, one (1) of the
principles, one (1) of the nurse staffing principles and that guideline to implement
the nurse staffing principles is looking at the patient acuity and having a patlent
acuity system.

Ms. Yukimura: Yés, ‘and is there only one (1) patient acuity system that
will meet the guidelines or is it...is there a variety of systems that could work?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes, there are many patients acuity systems. I mean you
would go and you could Google the patient classification.

Ms. Yuidmura: Oh really?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: And get a whole school (;f them ranging in (ihaudible).

Ms. Yukimura:  Right.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: The thmg. is that these are systems: that. ‘have been testgd
they've,been validated, they are being used across the country in various facilities

across the country. And that what we'd like to see happen is for Wilcox Hospltal;to
take a look see at these systems, choose one (1), 1mp1ement it, and have the
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opportunity then in a year’s time or so to, to evaluate and have...because one (1)
other piece of the, the guidelines for implementation of those nurse staffing
principles is to have the staff nurse be a part of that decision making, that their
voices be heard, that they are sitting as peers with management at the time that
they’re looking at the system and determining whether or not it works, and making
the tweaks that are necessary to make it work.

Ms. Yukimura: I see and you said that they, they vary in cost those

different systems, so that Would be an issue as well in terms of the management
that has to look at costs.. ‘ S ‘ fooa -

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Sure.

Ms. Yukimura: But basically you ’re asking for an openness to, to a system
that could work for both sides?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes.
Ms. Yukimura: Okay.
Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Actually it’s a system that would work for the patient.

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, but I'm presuming from };our answer that there are
several different kinds of systems that would work for the patient.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes, and generally the difference in those system, the
difference in those systems relates to the size of the facility, the staff mix within
that facility.

Ms. Yukimura: Right, right, I see, okay.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: And whether it’s rural or metropolitan.

Ms. Yukimura: Right and the kind of ancillary services a hospital may
have. - ‘ :

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Exactly.
Ms. Yukimura: Or not.
Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: All included in the staff mix.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay and then is this the only issue or is it as I've been
told three (3) issues that are really at the time unresolved?
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Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Actually Councilwoman, I am not at liberty to, to respond
to that because I am not on the negotiation team. I have not been (inaudible) to the
negotiation sessions.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.f ~

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: As Councilman earlier indicated thefe, there are three 3)
issues.

Ms. Yukimura: ‘Okay and two (2)‘. of thehl aren’t cost issues or sélargr
issues, right?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: I believe so, yes.

Ms. Yukimura: Yeah, okay and then 'thei'e"s ohe (1) issue of staffing?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Correct.

Ms. Yukimura: Which is the acuity...

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Yes.

Ms. Yukimura:  And it has some cost implications as well?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Eiactly. ’
Ms. Yukirhura: Okay thahk you very much for ‘clarlifs'fing that.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: You're welcome.

Chair Asing: Jimmy, I have a...
Mr. Tokioka: One (1) second Aggie. Chairman Asing?
Chair Asing: ‘ AThank you. I want to try to get somethmg clear, and the

first question is, prior to this new takeover, under the old system, did you have a
system you know I’'m hearing matrix, I hearing level of service, I hearing you know
different terminology is being used, but I have to assume that they are one (1) in the
same. You're looking for some system so that you can judge how many nurses is
required yeah, in a particular time for any particular case, or cases. So the question
is, prior, did you have such a system?.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Not having...not being an employee of Wilcox, I would not
be able to answer that questions definitively. _ . i




O ¢

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 35 : - JULY 17, 2006

Chair Asing: - Okay.

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: It is my understanding, however, that there is a system
and one (1) of them, I believe it was Donna Moore who referred to the matrix, that
is the system that is, that I am aware of is currently in place at Wilcox. Difficulty
with that system, however, is the nurses have said, and have been saying for
months that it is not working, and would like to have some opportunity to look at
other systems to put into place.

Chair Asing: Okay, so...
Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: vAnd then have the opportunity to help evaluate that.

Chair Asing: Okay, so there presently is a system but that particular
system is not working? S ' ,

Ms. Pigao—Cadiz: That is ridy understanding.

’ . . 5

Chair Asing: Okay.
"Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: However, you might want to recall some of the speakers,
from the facility itself. -
Chair Asing: Thank you, I appreciate that: =~ = &+ te
Mr. Tokioka: | Aggie, 1 have a question for you. You talked a little bit

about it in one of your responses, but I didn’t hear this part, when a question was
asked earlier about the different hospitals throughout the State, and in your
position do you deal with the other hospitals and their systems and how it relates to
the system at Wilcox?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: I don’t deal with their system per se; however, from the
nurses we have in those facilities, I am aware that there are patient classifications
systems that are in use throughout in other facilities.

Mr. Tokioka: Not part of HPH?

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: Straub has a system.

Mr. Tokioka: Straub is part of this HPH...

Ms. Pigao-Cadiz: HPH.

Mr. Tokioka: Okay.




